
 

1 
 

  
 
 
Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 
 

AGENDA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

Heman Park Community Center 
975 Pennsylvania Ave., University City, MO 63130 

6:30 pm; Wednesday, July 24, 2019 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of Minutes – April 24, 2019 Plan Commission meeting 
 

3. Public Hearings  
 

a. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-03 
Applicant: Canine Corner LLC – (Aynsley Wolters) 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to establish and  
operate a dog daycare and boarding facility. 
Address: 7404 Bland Drive 
(VOTE REQUIRED – TO OCCUR DURING NEW BUSINESS) 
 

4. Old Business - None 
 

5. New Business 
 

a. Conditional Use Permit – PC 19-03 
Applicant: Canine Corner LLC – (Aynsley Wolters) 
Request: Approval for a Conditional Use Permit to establish and  
operate a dog daycare and boarding facility. 
Address: 7404 Bland Drive 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 

6. Other Business 
 

a) Comprehensive Plan – Request For Proposal Discussion 
b) Infill Review Board Committee Discussion - Appointments 

 
7. Adjournment 



 

1 
 

PLAN COMMISSION  
Heman Park Community Center 

975 Pennsylvania Ave., University City, MO 63130 
6:30 pm; Wednesday, April 24, 2019 

 
The Plan Commission held their regular meeting at Heman Park Community Center located at 975 
Pennsylvania Avenue, University city, Missouri on Wednesday, February 27, 2019. The meeting 
commenced at 6:35pm and concluded at 7:46pm. 

 
1. Roll Call 
 
Voting Members Present   Voting Members Absent    
Judith Gainer     Michael Miller  

   Cirri Moran – Chair 
Margaret Holly 
Cynthia Head 
Ellen Hartz 
 
Non-Voting Council Liaison 
Paulette Carr 
 
Staff Present 
Gregory Rose, City Manager 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 
Clifford Cross, Director of Planning and Development 
 
Public Present 
M. Schneider 

 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  -  February – 27, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Holly to approve the February 27, 2019 Plan Commission minutes. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hartz. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

3. New Business 
 

a. Text Amendment – Amendment to the Zoning Code Sections 400.030, 400.510, 
400.570, 400.620, 400.630 and adding Division 15 to Article V of chapter 400 Relating to 
Medical Marijuana.    
VOTE REQUESTED 
 

Mr. Cross explained the proposed text amendments within a power point presentation to the Planning 
Commission. He provided a quick summary of the intent of the changes. Mr. Cross went thru various 
slides that identified the adoption of legislation to regulate medical marijuana, state responsibilities 
associated with medical marijuana, our role in locating the various medical marijuana uses as well as the 
amendments associated with the specific zoning ordinance text amendments staff was proposing.  
 
Council Member Carr requested that staff consider an expanded notice distance requirement be utilized 
when notifying property owners to ensure all potentially affected neighbors be notified. 
 
Chairperson Moran requested a clarification of how the definition pertaining to a church, school, daycare, 
that cater to children, would be regulated? Mr. Cross indicated that per the current proposal staff would 
interpret the regulations based upon the strict definitions pertaining to churches, schools, etc.  
 



 

2 
 

Chairperson Moran voiced a concern pertaining to the mixed residential uses that are located along the 
loop. Her specific concern was since various buildings, in the loop, contained residential dwellings would 
that prohibit a medical marijuana dispensary because it would violate the 150 foot zoning buffer 
requirement? Mr. Cross indicated that the buffer pertained to the underlying zoning and not based upon 
the specific use. He further indicated the use would only be a factor in allowing the medical marijuana 
business to locate within that particular dwelling.  Commission Member Head also requested a 
clarification of the buffer interpretation of Section 400.1495(6) and if you could put a medical marijuana 
use within the same building that contained a residential unit? Mr. Cross indicated, that based upon his 
interpretation of the International Code Council regulations, the inclusion of a medical marijuana use 
within a mixed use building would be permitted based upon the separation of occupancy classifications. 
 
Mr. Cross further expanded upon the regulations pertaining to the use of medical marijuana cultivation 
centers, manufacturing centers and testing centers. He specifically, indicated that the opportunity for 
these uses would only be within the General Commercial and Industrial Commercial Districts upon the 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. Mr. Cross further expanded upon the amendment and that the 
supplementary regulations would further regulate hours of operation, indoor operations only, etc.  
 
Commission Member Hartz voiced a concern in regulating content associated with the signage and would 
it violate a businesses freedom of speech? Mr. Cross indicated because it would be an agreed upon 
condition, associated with the use request, he believed it would not. 
 
Council Member Carr had a question as to whether or not a patient who grows plants, within their 
property, could grow them outside? Mr. Cross indicated that they could not per the state regulations 
pertaining to qualifying patients or caregivers. She further questioned if the City would be responsible for 
patient compliance pertaining to the state regulations? Mr. Cross indicated it was his understanding that 
the state would be responsible. Commission Member Holly questioned who would further regulate the 
patients who visit a dispensary? Mr. Cross indicated the operations associated with each dispensary 
would be regulated by the state. He did indicate that he believed we could potentially have another layer 
of regulation via our business license regulations.  
 
Commission Member Holly stated her interpretation of Amendment II and that it specifically pertains to 
medical marijuana and not recreational. She further indicated that it should be our goal to not hender or 
have excessive regulations pertaining to medical marijuana uses. Additionally, she questioned how 
businesses could operate and accept payment because of federal guidelines? Mr. Cross indicated it was 
his understanding that financial institutions are becoming more accommodating to accept alternate forms 
of payment and removing the cash only business transactions. City Manager Rose indicated he believed 
we are restructuring the policy because 1) we wanted to allow for a location for these business to operate 
because it could be illegal to prohibit them and 2) the conditional use permit could be utilized to allow for 
a better evaluation of the impact that these uses may have on the neighborhoods. Attorney Mulligan 
further supported Mr. Rose's position that we could not prohibit medical marijuana uses. He further 
indicated that this amendment further relaxed the state guidelines in terms of location, buffering, etc. 
Additionally, Mr. Mulligan indicated that the conditional use permit process allowed for the opportunity to 
fine tune each particular request, via conditions, that can be associated with the conditional use permit. 
 
Chairperson Moran asked if we were ready to vote and if there were any other questions. Commission 
Member Holly made a motion to recommend approval of the amendment, Commission Member Hartz 
seconded. Commission Member Gainer questioned if we wanted to further restrict the locations next to 
businesses that cater to children. Mr. Cross indicated that the amendment, as presented, would only 
restrict locations based upon businesses that are licensed to cater to children. Chairperson Moran further 
stated that the conditional use permit process would allow an additional opportunity to further notify 
businesses that cater to children. The discussion was closed and a unanimous vote to recommend 
approval of the text amendment as proposed.  
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

4. Other Business 
 

a. Election Of Officers  
 
Commission Member Head made a motion to re-elect the officers as they were. Commission Member 
Gainer seconded the motion which passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
Chairperson Moran identified the elected officials as  
1) Moran-Chair 2) Miller –Vice Chair & 3) Holly –Alternate. 
 
5. Reports 
 

a. Council Liaison Report 
 
Council Member Carr reported that the prior proposed parking text amendment passed and thanked the 
commission for their hard work. She further advised that Council Member Cusick is seeking an 
appointment for the Planning Commission.  
 

b. Staff Report 
 
Mr. Cross provided the commission an update on the status of the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Cross 
indicated that staff has started the process of seeking a consultant to assist in the development of the 
plan. He further indicated that there would be an upcoming joint study session with the Mayor and 
Council. Chairperson Moran further stressed the existence of a sub-committee for the comprehensive 
plan and that the Planning Commission needs to be fully involved throughout the process.  
 

c. Other Discussion 
 
The commission and staff touched on the proposed “Better Together”.  
 
 
6. Adjournment  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:46pm. 
 

 



 
Page 1 of 5 

  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   July 24, 2019 
 
FILE NUMBER:   PC 19-03 (PC 19-05360) 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  1 
 
Location: 7404 Bland Drive 
 
Applicant: Canine Corner LLC – (Aynsley Wolters) 
 
Property Owner: George and Therese Purviance 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a proposed dog 

daycare and boarding facility. 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [  ] Approval with Conditions in Attachment A [x] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Conditions of Approval   
B. Application Documents & Site Plan Drawings 
 
Existing Zoning:   “GC” – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant Building  
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: No change – Mixed Use/Transient Oriented Dev. (TOD)  
 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC, PD-M: Commercial, Planned Development (Mixed Use/TOD – FLU) 
East:  GC:          Commercial (Mixed Use/TOD – FLU) 
South:  SR, LR:      Single Family Residential, Limited Residential (Single-Family –FLU) 
West:  LR:         Limited Residential, Parkway Exit (County Road) (NA-FLU) 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 5 

 
Existing Property 
The existing building at 7404 Bland is a vacant commercial space formerly occupied by a 
graphic art/design firm. The parcel is approximately 0.11 acres, with a yard and some 
screening on the north and west sides of the property where it borders with one property 
zoned SR and one zoned LR. The north and east sides of the property border an existing BP 
service station zoned GC, and to the west is the exit ramp from Forest Park Parkway. Parking 
for several vehicles is proposed in a 30’ X 30’ driveway on Bland. The applicant says no 
street parking will be needed. Bland runs one way to the north, so the site is accessible either 
by Forest Park Parkway or coming from Northmoor. 
 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a dog daycare and boarding facility. 
The proposed use is listed as a conditional use in the General Commercial (GC) District by 
section 400.510, 4: Animal boarding facilities.  
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700.C of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications 
be reviewed by Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to 
the City Council for their consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700.D of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications be 
reviewed by City Council for the final decision, subsequent to the public hearing and 
recommendation from Plan Commission.  In conducting its review, City Council shall consider 
the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, and application to determine if the 
proposed C.U.P. application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Other Processes 
Traffic Commission - The review criteria for a C.U.P. includes the impact of projected 
vehicular traffic volumes and site access with regard to the surrounding traffic flow, 
pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and equipment.  In its capacity as 
an advisory commission on traffic related matters as per Section 120.420 of the Municipal 
Code, the Traffic Commission may be concerned with the parking and traffic impact of the 
project.   
 
Analysis 
The potential external impacts of a pet boarding facility are noise, parking, and traffic 
concerns. The first is difficult to determine. The application states that no more than seven 
dogs will be in the yard at any given time. The yard is about 80 feet from the nearest home 
(and abuts one residential yard in the rear). With a six foot privacy fence at this distance will 
the barking be a nuisance in the neighborhood? The proximity to Forest Park Parkway as 
well as Forsyth and a busy service station should be taken into consideration in terms of 
noise levels. 
 
The second potential issue is parking. The driveway is 30 feet wide and therefore meets the 
standards for a pet boarding facility: a minimum of three spaces and one space per 400 
square feet of the facility. In this case, the building is approximately 1050 square feet, thus 
requiring the minimum 3 spaces. Spaces at a 90 degree angle to the street must be a 
minimum 10 feet wide and 19 feet deep (see section 400.2020 of University City code).  



 
Page 3 of 5 

 
The parking issue is related to traffic concerns. There are two ways to access the location; 
because Bland is one-way running into Forsyth, customers and staff would need to either exit 
off of Forest Park Parkway or drive on Northmoor to reach the facility. Given that the 
business will be based mostly on drop-off and pick-up (morning and evening generally), it is 
expected that two “rushes” will occur each day. During these times, several cars may be 
picking up their pets at once. There is street parking on Bland, but assuming that some 
customers will pull in front of facility or even pull into the driveway, and given the short exit 
ramp with low visibility coming off of Forest Park Parkway, this situation could cause a traffic 
hazard to customers and travelers exiting off of the Parkway. Furthermore, the addition of a 
number of cars cutting through on Northmoor to reach the facility could have a significant 
impact to the neighborhood on this residential street.  
 
Public Works & Parks:  NA 
 
Fire Department:  NA 
 
Police Department:  NA 
 
Public Involvement 
A public hearing at a regular Plan Commission meeting is required by the Zoning Code.  The 
public hearing notice for the current proposal was published in the newspaper 15 days prior 
to the meeting date and was mailed to property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property, exceeding the required distance of 185 feet.  Signage was also posted on the 
subject property with information about the public hearing.  Any member of the public will 
have an opportunity to express any concerns by writing in or attending the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 
Review Criteria 
When evaluating a Conditional Use Permit the applicant is required to ensure that the 
following criteria is being met in accordance to the provisions set forth in Section 400.2710 of 
the Zoning Code. The Criteria is as follows; 
 
1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance   
    standards, and the standards for motor vehicle oriented businesses, if applicable, as  
    contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article; 
 
2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with  
    regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency  
    vehicles and equipment; 
 
3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as   
    police and fire protection, schools, and parks; 
 
4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be  
    provided; 
 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area; 
 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts; and 
 



 
Page 4 of 5 

7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have  
    been or will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level,  
    such potentially adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be  
    limited to: 
 

a.  Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control  
        islands, traffic control devices, etc.; 
b.  Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   

site and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular 
traffic in nearby residential areas; 

c.  Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the 
applicant's property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on 
adjacent streets; 

d.  Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the 
minimum requirements of this Chapter; 

e.  Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, 
and drive-through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent 
properties while maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without 
impeding internal traffic circulation; 

f.  Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use 
(e.g., deliveries); and 

g.  Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance 
neighborhood compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact (Section 400.2720) 
The Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit unless it 
shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the 
particular evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional 
use: 
 
1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or     
    convenience; 
 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable),  
    the Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and  
    development policies of the City; and 
 
5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards  
    contained in Article VII of this Chapter 
 
 
 



 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Staff Recommendation 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff is of the opinion that the proposed use of this 
property would significantly alter traffic on Northmoor and Bland Drive at the pick-up and 
drop-off hours for up to 30 pet owners. The noise from the outdoor space would potentially 
impact a small number of home owners on Northmoor. The Traffic Commission should be 
consulted to make a further study of potential effects, and the applicant would need to prove 
to neighbors that the sound, traffic safety concerns are unwarranted.  
  
Staff recommends denial of this Conditional Use Permit or further findings of fact to clarify 
impacts and mitigation strategies.  
 



 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 
 

  
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Case # PC 19-03 
 
 

The Plan Commission of the City of University City, Missouri will hold a public hearing on 
Wednesday, July 24, 2019 at 6:30 pm in the Heman Park Community Center, 975 Pennsylvania 
Avenue, University City, Missouri 63130, to consider the application of Canine Corner, LLC, 
for a Conditional Use Permit for the establishment and operation of a Dog Daycare & Boarding 
facility at 7404 Bland Drive.  For persons with disabilities who require special arrangements to 
attend, or if you have any questions, please contact Adam Brown at 314-505-8522.  All interested 
parties are invited to attend.   
 
 
 
 

 

7404 Bland 

Drive 



From: JoeErker .
To: Clifford Cross
Cc: halesforucity@gmail.com; Steve McMahon; Adam Brown
Subject: Canine Corner LLC Conditional Use Permit - 7404 Bland Drive
Date: Monday, July 15, 2019 4:00:50 PM

Cliff Cross
City of University City Planning Commission

Mr. Cross,

As a 30+ year Northmoor resident and owner of two properties (7315 Northmoor and 7303
Northmoor) in the neighborhood of the proposed dog daycare and boarding facility, I wish to
voice my strong opposition to granting a Conditional Use Permit to the applicant.

While there are many reasons I oppose such a facility, I'll focus on just a few;

Noise.
Odors.
Traffic/parking/safety.

Please imagine that your own back yard backed up to another back yard that contained seven
dogs from 7 AM to 9 PM. There are three homes that either touch, or are within a few feet of
the applicant's property line. The vacant lot to the south will hardly serve as a buffer for the
home to the south from the noise of seven dogs outside on that very small back yard and an
additional 23 dogs inside that small house. In the Application for Conditional Use Permit
form, the applicant claims that "my dogs are well trained and do not bark while out in the play
yard". The applicant is going to be boarding other people's dogs. The applicant cannot
possibly know the barking proclivity of these dogs. I Googled how far a barking dog could be
heard. While it certainly depends on a variety of factors, it can be heard about a block away....
and, that's just one dog! The noise impact on the entire block with up to 30 dogs residing
there will be severe. Of course, the impact on the quality of life and, ultimately, the value of
nearby homes will be severe.

Have you ever lived next door to folks with a dog that uses the back yard to "do his business"?
It doesn't take long, on a warm day, for the odors to really disrupt your back yard enjoyment.
Imagine 30 dogs rotating throughout the day in your next door neighbor's very small yard.
Very unpleasant thought. Please don't let that become a reality.

I'm sure you are aware of the problematic traffic situation for the applicant's address. Because
of the one way restriction on Bland, customers will need to circle around going south on Del-
Lin, west on Northmoor and north to 7404 Bland. There is a potential of 60 additional trips
through our neighborhood by non-residence every day to drop off and pick up their dogs. And,
that includes weekends. What a very bad idea to have such a business at that location. Once
the customer arrives at the location, where will they realistically park. The driveway, while
large, can only accommodate 3 cars (6 if you block the front cars). Many of the customers will
be arriving before and after work, causing a potential logjam. With the possibility of 60
arrivals/pick ups a day, many of those customers will have to park in the Northmoor
neighborhood and along Bland. The parking will be bad enough. Imagine if one of the dogs
gets loose on the walk down to daycare! Loose dogs pose a serious threat to the kids, adults
and other dogs in the neighborhood. (I believe there are about eight babies and toddlers

mailto:erker@juno.com
mailto:ccross@ucitymo.org
mailto:halesforucity@gmail.com
mailto:steve_mcmahon@att.net
mailto:abrown@ucitymo.org


currently living on the stretch of Northmoor between Del-Lin and Bland.)

The applicant claims that "Canine Corner Dog Daycare & Boarding will NOT negatively
impact neighbors because it does not have any affect on traffic, public health, safety or
welfare of any neighbors". I believe I have easily contradicted their claims.

I am aware that this property is zoned commercial. However, a commercial enterprise that has
such a profound, negative effect on our residential neighborhood does not belong.

Please do what you can to deny the Application for Conditional Use Permit for Canine Corner,
LLC at 7404 Bland Drive.

Sorry for the long email. Feel free to call me to discuss.

Respectfully,
Joe Erker
7315 Northmoor Drive
314-440-2225



From: George Purviance
To: Steve McMahon; halesforucity@gmail.com
Cc: Adam Brown; Clifford Cross
Subject: Canine Corner, LLC for 7404 Bland Drive
Date: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 8:20:44 PM

Dear University City, Council-members,

The Canine Corner concept is an innovative solution for many homeowners and working
neighbors in the University City and Clayton area. Ansley Wolters has the experience and
professionalism to provide a safe loving place to care for our pet dogs while we tend to
personal matters. The Bland building is located at the intersection of Forsyth Blvd.and the
Forest Parkway exit ramp. The Building was originally a home. When the Forest Park
Parkway was developed, the Forsyth Exit ramp caused the home to be zoned Commercial. A
Marketing Communication Corporate Design firm owned and operated there since 1981. Now
is the time for Canine Corner to take the location into the future. 

University City has meant Business to entreprenours like Mr. Joe Edwards, who has been
successfully repurposing University City buildings for years. Now is the time to recognize the
entrepreneurial expertise and passion of Ms. Aynsley B. Wolters owner operator of Canine
Corner, LLC. University City needs her passion and energy to move 7404 Bland Drive into
the future.

Respectfully,

George M. Purviance Sr. and Therese B. Purviance.

george@purvianceco.com —  terri@purvianceco.com

george@purvianceco.com

314-541-0615 c
314-432-0434 h

mailto:george@purvianceco.com
mailto:steve_mcmahon@att.net
mailto:halesforucity@gmail.com
mailto:abrown@ucitymo.org
mailto:ccross@ucitymo.org
mailto:george@purvianceco.com
mailto:terri@purvianceco.com
mailto:george@purvianceco.com






 

 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

6801 DELMAR BLVD. 

UNIVERSITY CITY, MO 63130 

Phone: 314-862-6767 | ucitymo.org 

 

                                                

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

For AN  

 

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN UPDATE 
 

QUALIFICATIONS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY   

5:00 P.M.(CDT), ON July 31, 2019  

RESPONSES RECEIVED AFTER THE DUE DATE  

AND TIME WILL NOT BE EVALUATED 

 

 

 

ISSUE DATE: July 1, 2019 
 



 

 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 

The City of University City, Missouri is seeking the services of a qualified planning 
Consultant/Firm to work with and assist city staff, stakeholders, elected officials and the 
community in the development of a new 2040 Comprehensive Plan (2040 Plan). The City 
is seeking qualified Consultants/Firms with considerable experience in community 
design, land use planning, parks planning, transportation planning, economic analysis 
and community engagement to evaluate our existing plan with the objective of completing 
a new 2040 plan that provides a clear vision for future growth and development.  

The 2040 Plan will be the foundation for determining effective public policy, master 
planning, land use decisions and provide an ongoing framework for informed and directed 
development decisions. The Plan shall include goals, objectives, strategies, graphs and 
other tools to analyze, assess and recommend best practices for values-based planning 
decisions that address the economic development, housing, infrastructure and other 
improvement needs of University City. The ultimate responsibility of the 2040 Plan will be 
to provide a policy guiding document that will reflect and respond to the priorities, values 
and requirements of residents and stakeholders while safeguarding the history, sense of 
place and desires that University City residents, businesses and visitors experience 
throughout the community. 

In addition, to the development of the 2040 Plan, the City is seeking an additional strategic 
plan document that will identify the planning process, strategies, opportunities and 
implementation techniques that will guide the City during five (5) year increments. The 
intent, of this additional strategic plan document, will be to ensure that the 2040 Plan 
continues to be a non-static document that evolves with the demands of the community. 
The ultimate goal of this process will be to develop a 20-year policy guiding 
Comprehensive Plan and a corresponding 5-year Strategic Plan that will ensure that 
growth management policies and actions remain consistent with the visions and desires 
of University City residents, businesses and guests.  

A Consultant/Firm will be selected for this project based upon criteria stated in the 
“Evaluation Process”. All proposals received by 5:00 p.m. CDT on Wednesday, July 31, 
2019 will receive full consideration. Any inquiries with respect to the expectations and/or 
scope of work sought through this proposal should be made to the attention of – Clifford 
Cross, Planning and Development Director - via email at ccross@ucitymo.org. 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

ABOUT UNIVERSITY CITY 
 
University City (City) is an inner-ring suburb on the western boundary of the City of St. 
Louis, Missouri. The City is located in St. Louis County. It ranks third and sixth with respect 
to total population and assessed valuation in St. Louis County. The City was founded by 
Edward Gardner Lewis and was incorporated in 1906. 
 
The form of government established by Charter is Council-Manager. The City Council is 
the legislative and governing body of the City. It consists of six Council members and the 
Mayor, all of whom are elected by the residents of the City. Council members are elected 
from three wards to serve four-year staggered terms. The Mayor is elected at large and 
serves a four-year term. The City Council and Mayor appoint the City Manager and City 
Clerk, and enact legislation to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
citizens of the City. The City Manager directly supervises all City government agencies 
and departments, except the Library, while also serving as chief advisor to the City 
Council.  
 
The City is considered a residential community with a diverse population. There are 
approximately 35,000 residents (U.S. Census Bureau 2017) and 18,000 housing units in 
the City.  The population density is 6,000 inhabitants per square mile. The area of the City 
is approximately 6 square miles. 
 
The City provides a full range of municipal services for its citizens. These include public 
safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation (solid waste), culture and recreation, public 
improvements, community development, and general administrative services.  
 
EXEPECTATIONS OF CONSULTANT/FIRM 
 
Throughout the process the selected Consultant/Firm will be expected to utilize their 
experience and drive the process. To achieve this goal, and utilize the experience of the 
selected consultant/firm, the City will require the following expectations be met and 
identified within the RFP; 
 

1. Initial meeting with city staff to review a project timeline, schedule meetings and 
begin the process of data acquisition. 
 

2. Gather all existing plans, maps, documents, data and other materials relevant to 
the project. The city will provide all available existing documentation to the 
consultant. The consultant will study and consolidate applicable materials into the 
comprehensive plan. 
 

3. Describe at least three approaches for providing effective stakeholder engagement 
and public participation. These alternatives should represent different levels of 
involvement, complexity and costs. Some examples include (but should not be 
limited to) formal public hearings, open house meetings, neighborhood meetings, 
and focus groups.  



 

 

4. Conduct meetings with key elected officials and citizen advisory groups. The 
selected consultant will lead stakeholder outreach and participation efforts with city 
staff providing assistance, where needed.  
 

5. Plan and implement an extensive stakeholder and public outreach process using 
a range of methods to inform and involve stakeholders, citizen organizations and 
the general public. Address the public hearing process and meetings with city staff, 
sub-task citizen groups, applicable advisory commissions, school districts, local 
units of government, etc. 
 

6. Develop comprehensive plan goals, objectives and implementation strategies 
based on technical data and public input. 

 
7. Draft materials for review and comment by the city in accordance with a schedule 

developed at the beginning of the planning process.  
 

8. Confirm the final comprehensive plan conforms to Missouri State Statute.  
 

9. Analyze consistency of current city ordinances and policies in relationship to the 
comprehensive plan goals and objectives and create an implementation program. 

 
10. Prepare a draft document for public review and comment, and present to City 

Council and committees. The plan should be presented in a format and language 
that is user-friendly and easily understood by the general public. 

 
11. Prepare a final draft document and present at a public hearing and all associated 

meetings for adoption of the plan. 
 

12. Prepare the required documents for submission of the plan to the City Council, and 
address any comments necessary to receive approval. 

 
13. Once the plan is approved by the City Council, the consultant will print a selected 

number of copies. 
 

14. Provide at least weekly updates, primarily via e-mail though occasionally in-person 
or via telephone, to update city staff on project status, discuss issues and review 
drafts. Periodic status reports may also be required to the City Council. 

 
15. All working and final documents must be delivered to the city in both hard copy 

and electronic formats that allow easy reproduction, direct web readiness and the 
ability for staff to edit. City staff will work with the consultant to post information to 
the city’s website. 

 
 
 
 



 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The Consultant/Firm are expected to conduct the following minimum tasks. The City 
strongly encourages proposers to expand on these tasks, emphasize tasks and to 
suggest additional tasks not identified in this RFP that may be necessary or beneficial. 
 

 Project Meetings. The Consultant/Firm is expected to meet regularly with staff. 
 

 Meetings with the Comprehensive Plan Committee (CPC), Staff, Planning 
Commission and Council. The consultant will meet with the CPC to provide 
updates and collect input. In addition, the consultant will solicit input and feedback 
from the Planning Commission and City Council providing interim reports, 
presentations and updates to each as required and appropriate; attend the Plan’s 
formal adoption by the Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
 Public Engagement and Communications. Public Participation is essential to this 

planning effort and must include an outreach and public participation process 
designed to engage the public and specific stakeholders in visioning the future of 
the City. Significant public input will be required throughout the process. We 
anticipate that a number of public meetings will be held in order to seek the 
opinions and views of the public at large, report on progress as the plan develops, 
solicit comments on specific ideas or concepts, and identify problems or barriers 
that must be acknowledged and overcome. Public involvement in the planning 
process and acceptance of the final plan is critical to the success of this effort, and 
respondents should explain their approach and public participation plan in detail in 
their responses.   

 
 2040 Plan Development. The Consultant/Firm will serve as the primary drafter of 

the plan and shall update research and develop materials for the 2040 Plan, 
including but not limited to:  
 

o A baseline review of existing plans and relevant information, including the 
existing Comprehensive Plan, Material Associated with 2015 Draft 
Comprehensive Plan, Neighborhood Plans, Corridor Plans, current codes 
and policies, demographic and census data and other information relevant 
to the required plan elements.   
 

o Develop an inventory and assessment of issues and opportunities based 
on work with staff, CPC committee, and public participation process.  

 
o Develop a vision for University City that will serve as a focal point for goals, 

policy and strategy decisions. 
 

o Draft a new Comprehensive Plan for Planning Commission and City Council 
adoption.  

 



 

 

o Provide digital, editable, and printable copies of all final documents 
including reports, maps, and final plan.   

 
o Areas that will need specific attention are:  The City is currently experiencing 

the presence of multiple abandoned and deteriorating dwellings in the 3rd 
ward. The consultant will assess the current district and identify potential 
redevelopment opportunities and regulatory overlay provisions within the 3rd 
ward and along Olive Boulevard.  Considerations that should be considered 
include population density, encourage owner-occupied residential 
properties, mixed-income residential development and planned 
developments along Olive-Boulevard. 

 
o Formed Based Code Concepts and Suggestions. 

 
 2040 Plan Content. The Comprehensive Plan document would include assembling 

and analyzing data regarding all of the existing conditions within University City 
and utilizing that data to develop policies, actions and an implementation plan to 
guide future development and decision making over a 20 year timeframe. It is 
anticipated the new 2040 Plan would cover the following content: 

 
o Community Assessment 

 

o Vision and Goals 
 

o Demographics/Economic Overview 
 

o Population, housing and demographic trends, and projections 
 

o Economic trends and forecasts, actions for an economic development plan 
 

o Natural Resources and Stormwater Management 
 

o Land Use - Existing land use, future land use plan, with an appropriate balance of 
commercial and residential uses. This plan should include policies and action steps 
for implementation to guide future development and land use decisions, including 
proposals and policy for land use. 

 

o Housing 
 

o Transportation 
 

o Parks & Recreation 
 

o Public Facilities 
 

o Implementation 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
 
The following materials must be received by 5:00 p.m. CDT on Wednesday, July 31, 2019 
for a proposal to be considered. However, during the “Evaluation Process”, the City 
reserves the right to request additional information or to seek clarification form the 
consultant/firm, or to allow for correction of errors and/or emissions. The submittal 
requirements are as follows: 
 

1. Project Overview  
 

A. General Information: Provides a brief overview of firm, including qualifications 
to execute the contract, company mission or statement of beliefs.  

 
B. Project Understanding: – A summary of the consultants understanding of the 

project as described in the RFP. 
 

2. Qualifications 
 

A. Personal Qualifications: 
 

a. Identification of lead project manager and their contact information. 
 

b. Name, proposed role, hourly rate, anticipated time commitment to the 
project and biography of each team member.  
 

B. References: Include a list of at least three municipal clients for which you have 
conducted comprehensive planning, visioning, community engagement and /or 
land use analysis. 

 
3. Proposal 

 
A. Proposal Overview: Provide specific approaches, methods and assumptions that 

will be utilized to accomplish each task. 
 

B. Proposed Work Plan and Schedule: Provide a proposed work plan with schedule, 
divided into phases identifying key tasks, milestones, approximate dates, project 
deliverables and resource needs. 

 
C. Community Engagement Plan: Provide an overview of your approach to 

community engagement including anticipated activities, approach to 
collaboration with city staff and efforts to engage populations.  

 
 
 



 

 

D. Budget: Identify cost estimates for each segment of the scope of the services, 
associated with the “scope of work” identified within this RFP. At minimum 
identify costs for the following; 

 
i. Community Engagement Activities 
ii. Evaluation of existing plans, policies and procedures 
iii. Community Analysis and future impacts/issues 
iv. Implementation  
v. Production and printing of final document 
vi. Any other anticipated budgetary needs including incidentals 

 
 

E. One electronic copy of the proposal, in Adobe PDF Format, shall be submitted 
on a flash drive along with 10 physical copies to the following;(Proposals can 
be mailed or hand delivered – They must be postmarked or stamped prior to 
the deadline date) 

 
City of University City  
Attn: Mrs. LaRette, City Clerk 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, Missouri 63130 

 
 
City further reserves the right to request additional information from any ConsultantFirm.  

 

 

  



 

 

EVALUATION PROCESS 
 
Consultant/Firm selection will be based upon a qualitative evaluation of the proposals 
submitted. During the review process, staff and a selection, committee from the City of 
University City, may request additional clarifying information from any Consultant/Frim 
that submits a proposal. Staff & the selection committee will evaluate the responses to 
this RFP, may interview the top-rated Consultants/Firms, and will make a 
recommendation to the Mayor and City Council as to the selection of the Consultant/Firm 
determined to be the most qualified for the project. It is anticipated that the City of 
University City and the selected Consultant will enter into a professional services contract 
for the period beginning September 2019 through project completion.  
  
A series of selection criteria will be utilized (not necessarily in priority order) during the 
evaluation of proposals and throughout the selection process:  
  
1. Demonstrated level of qualifications, experience, and professionalism for the   

respondent firm (or team), its principals, project management team, project manager, 
key staff, and sub-consultants (if applicable) assigned to the project;  

  
2.  Demonstrated level of professional and technical expertise and proven record in the 

preparation of Comprehensive and Strategic Plans / planning experience by the 
respondent Consultant/Firm (or team);  

  
3.  Demonstrated level of multi-disciplinary experience on the project team, with respect 

to the range of experience and services;  
  
4. Demonstrated experience in community engagement, public participation, and 

outreach as part of similar efforts;  
  
5.  Demonstrated experience working with public agencies, city departments, and other 

regional entities as part of similar efforts;  
  
6.  Demonstrated adherence to, and ability to stay on task, schedule, and budget as part 

of similar efforts;  
  
7. Demonstrated capacity and capability of the firm to perform the work within the 

specified timeline;  
  
8.  Overall value of the proposal and proposed services relative to the level of creativity 

and innovation in the proposed approach to the project; and 
 
9.  Other issues which may arise during the selection process.  
 
 
 
  



 

 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 
1. Applicable Laws and Courts - This RFP and any resulting contract shall be governed  

in all respects by the laws of the State of Missouri, and the Consultant/Firm shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations.  

  
2. Assignment of Contract - A contract shall not be assignable by the Consultant/Firm in 

whole or in part without the written consent of the City of University City.  
  
3. Changes to the Contract - Changes can only be made to the contract in one of the 

following ways:  
 

a. The parties may agree in writing to modify the scope of the contract. An increase 
or decrease in the price of the contract resulting from such modification shall be 
agreed to by the parties as a part of their written agreement to modify the scope 
of the contract.  

  
b. The City of University City may order changes within the general scope of the 

contract at any time by written notice to the Consultant/Firm. The 
Consultant/Firm shall comply with the notice upon receipt and shall be 
compensated for any additional costs incurred because of such order or shall 
give the City of University City a credit for any savings.  

 
4. Default - In case of the Consultant’s/Firm’s failure to deliver goods or services in 

accordance with the contract terms and conditions, the City of University City, after the 
submission of sufficient written notice to the Consultant/Firm, may procure the services 
from other sources and hold the Consultant/Firm responsible for any resulting 
additional purchase and administrative costs, which shall be in addition to any other 
remedies available to the City, including termination of the contract.  

 
5. Work Products - All papers, reports, forms, materials, creations or inventions created 

or developed in the performance of this contract shall become the sole property of the 
City of University City. On request, the Consultant/Firm shall promptly provide an 
acknowledgment or assignment in a written form satisfactory to the City to document 
the City’s sole ownership of any specifically identified intellectual property created or 
developed in the performance of the contract.  

 
6. No Corrections - Once a competitive proposal is submitted, the City may not accept 

any request by any proposer to correct errors or omissions in any calculations or 
competitive price submitted. 

 
7. Openness of Procurement Process - Written competitive proposals, other submissions, 

correspondence, and all records made thereof, as well as negotiations conducted 
pursuant to this RFP, shall be handled in compliance with the Missouri Open Records 
Act. Proposals may not be subject to disclosure during the evaluation and negotiations 
process but will be subject to public requests for review at the conclusion of the 
contracting process. The City of University City gives no assurance as to the 
confidentiality of any portion of any proposal once submitted.  



 

 

7. No Collusion - By proposing a submission to the RFP, the proposer certifies the 
proposer has not divulged to, discussed or compared his/her competitive proposal with 
other proposers and has not colluded with any other proposers or parties to this 
competitive RFP whatsoever. 

  
8. Rejection of Bids or Informality Waiver – The City of University City reserves the right 

to reject any or all responses or to waive any irregularity, variance, or informality 
whether technical or substantial in nature, in keeping with the best interests of the City.  

 
9. Litigation and Debarment – Consultants/Firms must disclose any prior, current, or 

proposed business-related debarment, suspension, ineligibility, voluntary exclusion 
from contracts, suspension, litigation, bankruptcy, or loan defaults within the past five 
(5) years; as well as if the Consultant/Firm or any of its principals are the subject of any 
pending investigations or hearings by any Federal, State, or local regulator agency. If 
none, a statement to that effect must be included with the RFP. 

 
10.  Merger and Severability – This RFP contains the entire agreement between the parties 

relating to the subject matter hereof. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision 
hereof, or of the application of any provision hereof to any circumstances, shall in no 
way affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision, or the application of such 
provision to any other circumstances. This Agreement (and each amendment, 
modification and waiver in respect of this Agreement) may be executed and delivered 
in counterparts (including by facsimile transmission or e-mail), each of which will be 
deemed an original, and all of which together constitute one and the same instrument. 
Delivery of an executed counterpart signature page of this RFP by e-mail (PDF) or 
facsimile transmission shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart 
of this RFP. 

  



 

 

Insurance 
  
1. Liability Insurance – The Consultant/Firm shall furnish, pay for, and maintain during 

the life of the contract with City of University City the following liability coverage:   
 

a. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance on an “occurrence” basis in an amount 
not less than $1,000,000 combined single-limit Bodily Injury Liability and Property 
Damage Liability;  

b. Business Automobile Liability insurance in the amount of at least $1,000,000, 
providing Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability;  

c. Workers’ Compensation Insurance applicable to its employees for statutory 
coverage limits, and Employers’ Liability with a $500,000 limit, which meets all 
applicable state and federal laws; and  

d. Professional Liability/Malpractice/Errors or Omissions insurance, as appropriate 
for the type of business engaged in by the Consultant/Firm, shall be purchased 
and maintained by the Consultant/Firm with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  

  
2. Additional Insured – The City of University City is to be specifically included as an 

additional insured on the Comprehensive General Liability and Business Automobile 
Liability policies referenced above.  

  
3. Notice of Cancellation or Restriction - All policies of insurance must be endorsed to 

provide the City of University City with thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation or 
restriction.  

  
4. Certificates of Insurance/Certified Copies of Policies - The Consultant/Firm shall 

provide the City of University City with a certificate or certificates of insurance showing 
current coverage as required by this RFP. The Consultant/Firm will maintain this 
coverage with a current certificate or certificates of insurance throughout the term 
stated in the proposal. New certificates and new certified copies of policies (if certified 
copies of policies are requested) shall be provided to the City of University City 
whenever any policy is renewed, revised, or obtained from other insurers. The 
certificates and/or certified policies shall be sent or delivered to the City’s Finance 
Director and addressed to:  City of University City, 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City,  
MO 63130. 

  
5. Hold Harmless Provisions - The Consultant/Firm shall defend, indemnify, save and 

hold the City of University City harmless from any and all claims, suits, judgments and 
liability arising directly or indirectly from the performance of the contract by the 
Consultant/Firm, its employees, subcontractors, or assigns, including legal fees, court 
costs, or other legal expenses. The Consultant/Firm acknowledges that it is solely 
responsible for complying with the terms of this RFP. In addition, the applicant shall, at 
its expense, secure and provide to the City of University City, prior to beginning 
performance under this RFP, insurance coverage as required in this RFP. The primary 
Consultant/Firm providing services or products to the City will be expected to enter to 



 

 

a written agreement, contract, or purchase order with the City that incorporates, either 
in writing or by reference, all the pertinent provisions relating to insurance coverage. 
Any party providing services or products to the City of University City will be expected 
to adhere to the requirements as contained herein. A failure to do so may, at the sole 
option of the City, disqualify any bidder or proposer of services and/or products to the 
City of University City.  

  
  
RFP Questions and Clarifications  
 
To ensure consistent response and correct information to all interested parties, 
Consultants/Firms should submit all questions in writing to Clifford Cross, Planning and 
Development Director via email: ccross@ucitymo.org.   No questions will be accepted 
after 5:00 p.m. on July 19, 2019. 
 
 



University City, MO
Tuesday, July 16, 2019

Chapter 120. Commissions, Authorities, Boards
and Committees

Article XVIII. Residential Infill Review Board

Section 120.980. Intent.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.010; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
The intent of  the City Council  is  to establish a Residential  Infill  Review
Board  (IRB)  that  shall  field  complaints  in  matters  of  residential  infill  to
ascertain whether the desires of the neighboring property owners and of
the applicant can be brought closer together. The IRB shall act solely in an
advisory  capacity.  The  IRB  shall  have  no  power  to  adopt,  enforce,  or
administer  any  building,  subdivision,  zoning  or  other  regulation  or
ordinance.

Section 120.990. Established — Composition.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.020; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
The  IRB  shall  consist  of  seven  (7)  members.  Additionally,  three  (3)
members  of  the  Plan  Commission  may  be  appointed  by  and  at  the
discretion of the Chairperson of the Plan Commission; all members shall
be  citizens  of  University  City.  No  member  will  receive  monetary
compensation. The IRB may elect from its members a Chairperson, a Vice
Chairperson, and a Secretary. It may adopt such rules of procedure as it
deems  necessary  to  effectuate  the  provisions  of  this  Chapter.  The
Secretary shall submit written summaries of each IRB meeting to the City
Council and City Manager.

Section 120.1000. Appointment and Terms of
Members — Filling Vacancies — Qualifications —
Removal.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.030; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
The Mayor and each Councilmember may appoint one (1) of the first (1st)
members. Thereafter, all vacancies shall be appointed by the City Council.
Of those first (1st) appointed, each shall be randomly assigned a one (1),
two  (2)  or  three  (3)  year  term,  renewable  thereafter  for  three  (3)  year
terms. Appointment priority should be given to qualified design reviewers

University City, MO https://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28289514&children=true

1 of 4 7/16/19, 7:00 AM



A. 

B. 

A. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

who are competent to interpret proposals and make judgments regarding
both design guideline conformance and design quality. Every effort should
be  made  to  include  at  least  one  (1)  architect  and  one  (1)  landscape
architect. Members are subject to removal without cause by a two-thirds
(2/3) vote of the City Council.

Section 120.1010. Notification To Neighbors —
Public Hearing.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.040; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
All  property  owners  within  three  hundred  (300)  feet  of  the  project
property  with  street  frontage  on  the  same  street  and  all  property
owners within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the project property shall
be notified by the Zoning Administrator, within ten (10) days of receipt
of  an  application,  that  they  may  request  a  public  hearing  with  the
applicant and design agent present to explain the project and answer
questions. The applicant shall include a list of such property owners
and their addresses with the application when it is filed.

A public hearing shall  be held, with the property owners, applicant,
and developer present, if  a petition signed by at least sixty percent
(60%) of the property owners within said radius is presented to the
Zoning Administrator within ten (10) business days after notification is
sent to the property owners, with a contact person designated therein.
The Zoning Administrator shall notify the contact person of the date,
time and location of the public hearing. At the public hearing, which
shall be set up by the Zoning Administrator and held by the IRB within
ten (10) days after the Zoning Administrator's receipt of the petition, if
the  applicant  is  not  willing  to  make  changes  asked  for  to  the
satisfaction of the petitioners, then the IRB shall perform its duties as
set out in Section 120.1020 of this Chapter.

Section 120.1020. Powers and Duties.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.050; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
The IRB shall  examine applications for  residential  subdivisions and
building permits  related thereto to  determine whether  the proposed
project  will  achieve general  conformity with the prevailing style and
design  of  the  surrounding  neighborhood  and  is  conducive  to  the
proper residential development of the City. "Subdivision", as used in
this Chapter, shall mean:

The division or re-division of a tract of land into two (2) or more
lots; or

The consolidation of two (2) or more tracts of land into one (1) lot;
or

The adjustment of one (1) or more boundaries between two (2) or
more lots.

University City, MO https://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28289514&children=true

2 of 4 7/16/19, 7:00 AM



B. 

C. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

D. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

The  IRB  shall  review  applications  for  residential  subdivisions  and
building permits for new construction which is replacing a house to be
demolished or which had been demolished within three (3) years of
the application date on the existing lot for compliance with the spirit of
the Comprehensive Plan, specifically with regard to ensuring that the
neighborhood is not harmed by devaluation due to lot size, setbacks,
water  drainage,  tree  removal,  availability  of  off-street  parking  and
access by emergency vehicles, or other pertinent factors.

In determining whether the proposed infill building conforms with the
prevailing  neighborhood  pattern,  the  IRB  shall  consider  all  factors
including,  without  limitation,  whether  the  proposed  infill  building
conforms with Subsections (A) and (B) of this Section, and additionally
the

Massing and volumetric articulation;

Roof geometry and roofing materials;

Facade composition and fenestration patterns;

Facade materials, details, and ornamentation; and

Landscaping patterns, forms and materials.

The  IRB  shall  strive  to  ensure  that  individual  creativity  is  not
suppressed just for the sake of strict conformity.

Section 120.1030. Recommendations For
Approval or Disapproval of Applications.

[R.O. 2011 §2.57.060; Ord. No. 6617 §1 (part), 2006]
As  soon  as  possible,  but  not  more  than  ten  (10)  days  after  a
scheduled public hearing, the IRB shall report its recommendations for
approval or disapproval of applications for residential subdivisions to
the  Zoning  Administrator  for  presentation  to  the  Plan  Commission.
Once  the  Plan  Commission  approves  or  disapproves  the
recommendations of the IRB, the recommendations shall be reported
to the City Council and the City Manager. The recommendations of the
IRB shall not be binding on the Plan Commission or the City Council.

As  soon  as  possible,  but  not  more  than  ten  (10)  days  after  a
scheduled public hearing, the IRB shall report its recommendations for
approval  or  disapproval  of  applications  for  building  permits  to  the
Zoning Administrator for presentation to the City Manager and the City
Council. The recommendations of the IRB shall not be binding on the
City Manager or the City Council.

The  IRB  shall,  from  time  to  time,  recommend  to  the  City  Council
changes in the building, subdivision, and zoning ordinances for more
harmonious and neighborhood-enhancing subdivisions and residential
infill construction within any neighborhood.

University City, MO https://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28289514&children=true

3 of 4 7/16/19, 7:00 AM




































	2019-07-24 - Plan Commission Packet
	2019-07-24-Plan Commission
	PC_Minutes_04_24_19 DRAFT
	PC 19-03 CUP7404 Bland Staff Report
	7404 Bland PHN For Website
	Binder1citizen responses as of staff report
	Canine Corner LLC Conditional Use Permit - 7404 Bland Drive
	Canine Corner, LLC for 7404 Bland Drive
	7404 Bland Letter from Matt and Sue Weis

	RFP for Comprehensive Plan
	Chapter 120. Commissions Authorities Boards and Committees Article XVIII. Residential Infill Review Board (002)

	Application Packet

